SENATE FI NANCE COWM TTEE
April 6, 2016
1:05 p.m

1: 05: 34 PM

CALL TO ORDER

Co-Chair MacKinnon called the Senate Finance Committee
nmeeting to order at 1:05 p. m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Senat or Anna MacKi nnon, Co- Chair
Senat or Pete Kelly, Co-Chair
Senator Peter M cciche, Vice-Chair
Senator dick Bishop

Senat or M ke Dunl eavy

Senat or Lyman Hof f man

Senat or Donny d son

VEMBERS ABSENT

None

ALSO PRESENT

Dave Donl ey, Hope Community Resources, Juneau; Eric CGurl ey,
Seni or Manager, Services and Support, Hope Community
Resources, Juneau; Callie Conerton, Student Body President,
University  of Al aska, Sout heast ; Paul Fuhs, Mari ne
Exchange, Juneau; Ed Page, Executive Director, Marine
Exchange, Juneau.

PRESENT VI A TELECONFERENCE

Lois Epstein, Director, The WI derness Society, Anchorage;
Rick Koch, Gty Mnager, Cty of Kenai, Kenai; Geg
Mei ssner, Wangell Port and Harbor Departnent, Wangell;

Anne Bi berman, Self, Fai r banks; Katie Baxter, Chair,
Li brary Advocacy Committee, Alaska Library Association,
Kodi ak; Jill Yor dy, Sel f, Fai r banks; Steve Ribuffo,
Director, Port of Anchorage, Anchorage; Paul Kendal I,

Sel f, Anchor age.

SUMVARY



SB 138 BUDGET: CAPI TAL

SB 138 was HEARD and HELD in commttee for
further consideration.

#sb138

SENATE BILL NO 138
"An Act making appropriations, including capital
appropri ations, r eappropri ations, and ot her

appropriations; making appropriations to capitalize
funds; and providing for an effective date."

1: 06: 39 PM

APUBLI C TESTI MONY

1: 06: 57 PM

LO S EPSTEIN, DI RECTOR, THE W LDERNESS SOCIETY, ANCHORAGE
(via teleconference), shared that she was the author of
many state transportation and nega projects. She testified
against four projects: Knik Arm Bridge; Juneau Access
Project; Anbler Road; and the Susitna Dam She felt that
there was substantial noney in the capital budget all ocated
for those projects that could be used for other state
infrastructure projects. She felt that the noney could be
considered "new revenue", and stressed that Al askans could
be put to work inmediately.

Co- Chair MacKi nnon encouraged Ms. Epstein to conplete her
testimony. Ms. Epstein felt that one or nore of the
projects should be cancelled to allow for state noney to be
used as match for federal transportation dollars.

1:11: 07 PM

RICK KOCH, CTY MNAGER, CITY OF KENAI, KENAI (via
tel econference), testified in support for SB 138. He shared
that he had been a city manager and engineer working in
| arge scale projects in the state. He did not feel that the
budget would support a sustainable construction industry.
He shared an anecdote from Kenai related to contracting. He
urged the committee to create a long range healthy capita
budget proposal. He thanked the <commttee for their
efforts.

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 2 04/06/16 1:05 P. M



1:13:40 PM

GREG MEI SSNER, WRANGELL PORT AND HARBOR DEPARTMENT,
WRANGELL (via teleconference), testified in support of the
Mat ching G ant Harbor Prograns. He shared that he had
attended a budget presentation, and he had conversed about
t he | mportance of har bor s to a holistic state
infrastructure. He stressed that ports and harbors enhanced
community economes. He stated that the current funding
would not fund the port in Wangell, and wurged the
conmittee to provide nore funding for the port projects. He
shared that Wangell had devel oped the projects, with the
expectations of state funds.

1:16: 25 PM

DAVE DONLEY, HOPE COMMUNITY RESOURCES, JUNEAU, spoke in
support of the inclusion of $115,000 to the capital budget.
He stated that the request was included in the governor's
anended request. He stated the housed individuals were
entitled to the Medicaid services by law. He explained
that, w thout the honmes, the state would need to build new
state facilities to house the individuals. He stressed that
the request was intended to mamintain the organization's
basi ¢ functions.

1:18: 54 PM

ERIC GURLEY, SEN OR MANAGER, SERVICES AND SUPPORT, HOPE
COVMUNI TY RESOURCES, JUNEAU, shared his experience working
for Hope Community Resources. He stated that the additiona

fundi ng of $115, 000 woul d keep t he or gani zati on
functioning. He thanked the conmttee for their previous
support in years past.

1: 20: 46 PM

CALLI E CONERTON, STUDENT BODY PRESI DENT, UNI VERSI TY OF
ALASKA, SOUTHEAST, testified in support of funding for the
University of Alaska (UA). She specifically spoke in
support of the engineering building at the University of
Al aska Fairbanks (UAF). She stressed that the project cost
an additional $3 mllion every vyear of delay of the
proj ect .

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 3 04/06/16 1:05 P. M



Co- Chair MacKi nnon wondered whether the wuniversity had
bonding authority to conplete the engineering building.
Ms. Conerton agreed to provide that information.

Co- Chair MacKi nnon understood the inportance of conpleting
t he engi neering buil di ng.

1: 23: 34 PM

PAUL FUHS, MARINE EXCHANGE, JUNEAU, spoke in support of
$600,000 to maintain the antenna sites using cruise ship
head tax funds.

1: 24: 04 PM

ED PAGE, EXECUTI VE DI RECTOR, MARI NE EXCHANGE, JUNEAU
stated that there back wup docunents to highlight his
t esti nony.

1: 25: 33 PM
AT EASE

1:25:55 PM
RECONVENED

M. Page stated that the cruise ship representatives were
in support of the use of the funds.

M. Fuhs | ooked at a slide in a presentation.

Co- Chair MacKi nnon expl ained that public testinony was not
typically a presentation.

M. Fuhs shared that the system was used for a variety of
reasons.

1:29: 00 PM
AT EASE

1:29: 45 PM
RECONVENED

Co-Chair MacKinnon stated that she would take a recess
until 1:45pm

1: 30: 39 PM
AT EASE

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 4 04/06/16 1:05 P. M



2:08:16 PM
RECONVENED

2:08: 19 PM

ANNE Bl BERVAN, SELF, FAI RBANKS (via teleconference),
testified in support of the <conpletion of the new
engi neering building at UAF. She stressed that the buil ding
only becane nore expensive with each year that the buil ding
remai ned unfinished. She al so pointed out that the building
cost $500,000 per vyear to nmintain. She also spoke in
support of inplenmenting a state incone tax. The project was
originally intended to educated and create new engi neers to
contribute to Alaska's econony. She stressed that
conpletion of the building would be a positive nove for
Al aska's fiscal future. She stated that UAF graduates
continually get jobs in the state to enhance the state's
engi neering-related industries.

2:11: 35 PM
AT EASE

2:32: 46 PM
RECONVENED

2:33: 15 PM

KATI E BAXTER, CHAIR, LIBRARY ADVOCACY COW TTEE, ALASKA
LI BRARY ASSOCI ATI ON, KODI AK (via teleconference), requested
full funding for the Online with Libraries (OA) program
She stated that the OA program provided dependable
internet to Al askans. She stated that the funding was not
included in the operating budget, so she was requesting
that the funds be included in the capital budget. She
stated that $325,000 would be enough to keep the library
internet through OAL intact. She stated that OA was a
primary critical program

2:36: 06 PM

JILL YORDY, SELF, FAIRBANKS (via teleconference), testified
agai nst funding for the Anbl er Road.

Co- Chai r MacKi nnon queried the road M. Yordy was
referencing. Ms. Yordy replied that it was the Anbl er Road.

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 5 04/06/16 1:05 P. M



2:38:27 PM

STEVE RI BUFFO, DI RECTOR, PORT OF ANCHORAGE, ANCHORAGE (via
tel econference), testified in support of funding the $290
mllion for the conpletion of the Anchorage Port
Moder ni zation Project. He stressed that the Port of
Anchorage was essential and beneficial to the surrounding
communities. He stressed that the current facility had no
prevention against a significant earthquake. He stated that
the project was currently in phase 1, and explained that
there needed further funding to conplete the entire
proj ect .

Co- Chair MacKinnon stated that the nmeeting would recess
until 2:55pm

2:41:17 PM
AT EASE

2:55:09 PM
RECONVENED

2:55:35 PM

PAUL  KENDALL, SELF, ANCHORAGE (via teleconference),
testified in support of a $2 billion budget nodel.

Co- Chair MacKi nnon CLOSED public testinony.

3:00: 25 PM

Senator Dunleavy remarked that the OA program testinony
was proper testinony. He echoed the remarks of M. Kendal
about the tinme that it takes to fix the state's budget
problems. He stressed that the state needed to fully
exam ne the state's budget.

Co- Chair MacKi nnon shared that there were 24,000 current
state enployees, and the comrittee had reviewed the
contracts. She stated that that the state was allowed to
proceed w thout a constitutional anmendnment. She stressed
that the committee had engaged in conversations related to
the concerns from M. Kendall, and those nunbers were
avai lable to commttee nenbers.

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 6 04/06/16 1:05 P. M



Co- Chai r MacKi nnon discussed the following neeting's
agenda.

SB 138 was HEARD and HELD in commttee for further
consi derati on.

#
ADJ QURNIVENT
3:03: 15 PM

The neeting was adjourned at 3:03 p. m

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 7 04/06/16 1:05 P. M



